Regular Meeting
Monday, April 19, 2021
6:00 pm
Chowan County Public Safety Center
305 West Freemason Street

This meeting was recorded. A copy of the recording is in the meeting file labeled April 19, 2021.

Present Chair Bob Kirby, Commissioners, Chris Evans, Ron Cummings, Larry McLaughlin,
Tray Taylor, Alex Kehayes and Ellis Lawrence.

Staff present County Manager Kevin Howard and Board Clerk Susanne Stallings.

Regular Meeting
Chair Kirby called the regular meeting to order and led all in the pledge of allegiance.

Commissioner Cummings then offered the invocation.

Approval of Agenda

Ms. Stallings noted a request to amend the agenda to add budget amendments 2021-054 and
2021-055 as well as a Resolution in opposition to HB401/SB349 Increasing Housing
Opportunities

Commissioner McLaughlin moved to approve the agenda as amended. Chair Kirby asked for all
in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0).

Public Comment
Ms. Stallings noted that no public was signed up to speak and none was submitted.

Consent Agenda

All items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and may be enacted by one motion.
If a County Commissioner requests discussion on an item, the item will be removed from the
Consent Agenda and considered separately.

Minutes

The Board will consider approval of the March 2, 2021 Retreat, March 9, 2021 CIP Committee
Meeting, March 22, 2021 Joint School Committee Meeting, and March 15, 2021 Regular
Meeting minutes.

Commissioner McLaughlin moved to approve the consent agenda as presented. Chair Kirby asked
for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0).

Annual Health Insurance Renewal
Cathy Maxfield a representative with Pierce Group Benefits presented the Board with information
on the annual plan renewal rates. A copy of the PowerPoint is in the meeting file labeled April 19,




2021. She noted that the renewal quote from BCBS originally came in at a 9% increase and they
negotiated it down to a 3% increase. She stated the employees will see an increase to the maximum
out of pocket for individual (current $7,150 proposed $8,550) and family (current $14,300
proposed $17,100).

Commissioner Kehayes asked if the increase will impact the employees who pay for dependent
coverage.

Ms. Maxfield stated yes. She noted that BCBS is not offering the current plan design for the
renewal.

Commissioner Kehayes stated he feels BCBS has to recoup the 6% loss in the increase somewhere.
Ms. Maxfield stated that the previous largest claimant is no longer on our current plan which
impacts the loss ratio. She stated the other two high claimants will not carry over as well. She

stated that they looked for the best plan for the employees.

Chair Kirby stated his frustration with not being able to compare apples to apples with the
renewals. He asked if this is an option.

Ms. Maxfield stated that is possible if you are self-funded.

Chair Kirby stated that the out of pocket and copays continue to go up and there is less insurance
available to the employees.

Ms. Maxfield stated that Chowan had a bad year previously and changing carriers frequently
makes you a higher risk for the insurance companies.

Commissioner Kehayes asked for the Manager’s recommendation.
Mr. Howard stated he recommends approval of the renewal.

Commissioner Evans moved to approve the renewal as presented. Chair Kirby asked for all in
favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0).

Service Agreement with Pierce Group
Ms. Stallings noted an agreement with Pierce Group was included in the Board packets for renewal
of the contract.

Commissioner Evans moved to approve the contract as presented. Chair Kirby asked for all in
favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0).

School Board Recommendation Consideration

Superintendent Dr. Michael Sasscer provided the Board with a PowerPoint Presentation
regarding the recommendation from the Board of Education regarding the scope of the high
school project. A copy of the PowerPoint is in the meeting file labeled April 19, 2021.




Dr. Sasscer stated that the Board of Education recommends fully funding the new John A.
Holmes High School project upfront, using a USDA loan at a project budget of $50 million, and
to design, bid and construct as a single project. He noted that a previous meeting presentation
from the County’s financial advisor Davenport and Associates a fully funded project would not
result in a tax increase when coupled with the state grant.

Rick Ott, Project Manager with M.B Kahn Construction Company noted that if the project is
fully funded the project would not only be completed more efficiently but certain construction
efforts for Phase I and Phase II would not have to be duplicated. He stated that he projects
inflation could significantly impact the total project cost for Phase II and if the project is
combined it would save almost $5.8 million. He stated that there are projections of increases in
interest rates which would also impact the project negatively if the project were done in two
phases, He noted that additional factors such as ordering in bulk and single design of the HVAC
and electrical systems would also result in cost savings. He provided the Board with a projected
timeline for a combined phase project. The timeline indicated construction would begin January
2022 with a move in for Phase I in June 2023. He stated that Phase 2 would commence in July
2023 with a final move in July 2024.

Dr. Sasscer reviewed the campus proposed master plan and stated the architect would then begin
design.

Commissioner McLaughlin stated that the Board of Commissioners have reviewed this project in
detail over the past year and have reviewed the financial information provided by the County’s
financial advisors. He stated that the public has indicated concern about the price. He stated the
design of the school is far superior to what is currently on the campus and stated his excitement
over the positive impact on the continuing education programs offered on the campus.

Commissioner Kehayes stated that the study that was provided to the Board regarding the needs
at Chowan Middle School. He stated his concern over impacting the County’s ability to address
the Middle School needs going forward.

Mr. Ott stated that most of the middle school is in good shape. He stated he will make
recommendations to address some drainage issues at the site in the near future however part of
the school is only 30 years old. He sated that the older parts will need to be renovated or
reconstructed however he feels there is another 8-10 years before the Board will have to address
that.

Chair Kirby stated that the original projected budget was $45,000,000, then it went up to $49
million and now it is $50 million.

Mr. Ott stated that a previous plan was $60,000,000 which included a larger auditorium. He
stated the Board directed him to decrease the project cost. He stated the $45 million was a plug
number. He stated that while the budget is tight, it includes a contingency of 5% and the project
can be done for $50,000,000.

Chair Kirby asked if the $50,000,000 is the construction, design FFE (fixtures, furniture and
equipment) and the contingency all in one budget.



Mr. Ott stated the $50 million includes the plaques and gold shovels for the ceremonial
groundbreaking. He stated he intends to complete the project for that amount. He stated his job
is to ensure the project stays within the budget.

Commissioner Cummings asked about future budget projections.

Mr. Howard stated the Auditor is currently preparing a report that looks at the County’s
upcoming capital plans and needs such as the jail.

Commissioner Kehayes discussed his concern over the impact on future budgets with regards to
current County capital needs like fire trucks and Water Department plant capital needs.

Mr. Howard stated that those expenses will be paid from the Fire Fund and Water Funds
respectively. He stated that there is some cushion in the current capital reserve fund.

Commissioner Kehayes stated he appreciated the information that was provided by Davenport
and Associates.

Mr. Howard stated the report from the Auditor will give the County the bigger picture.
Chair Kirby stated that the current revaluation will also allow the county to realize an increase in
property values but this will also result in an increase for tax payers. He stated that the County

may have to adjust the rate to meet its obligations.

Commissioner Cummings moved to approve the Board of Education recommendation as
presented.

Commissioner McLaughlin asked about the processes for bidding and penalties for late work.

Mr. Ott stated that the bidders are provided a schedule that includes penalties for scheduled
activities.

Commissioner McLaughlin asked who approves the contracts.

Mr. Ott stated the County pays the bill and the Board of Education handles the contracts.
Mr. Howard stated the County will handle the USDA loan and contract.

Commissioner McLaughlin asked if the County Attorney will review that contract.

Mr. Howard stated yes.

Commissioner Kehayes noted that the Davenport report cites the debt to assessed value policy.
He asked if the Board will need to address the policy.

Mr. Howard stated that he thinks this should be addressed at the revaluation.

Commissioner Kehayes asked for clarification that the $50,000,000 includes everything.



Mr. Ott stated yes.

Ms. Stallings read the motion. Chair Kirby asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously
(7-0).

Mr. Ott stated this was a historic moment for Chowan County.

Lease to Carolina Telephone
Mr. Howard presented the following:

PURSUANT to North Carolina General Statute 160A-272, Chowan County, North Carolina,
intends to adopt a resolution authorizing a lease of County-owned real property located at:

1416 Virginia Rd. (well site located on Highway 32 between Macedonia and
Morristown Roads) identified by Chowan County Parcel Identifier Number 6897-00-
25-4050

In accordance with North Carolina General Statute 160A-272, Chowan County, upon
confirmation by the Chowan County Board of Commissioners at its meeting on April 19,
2021, intends to adopt a resolution authorizing the lease of the above-described real property
to_Carolina Telephone for the purpose of placing and maintaining certain equipment and
facilities, for a period of 10 years from the Effective Date and thereafter will automatically
renew for 2 successive periods of 5 years.

A copy of the Lease is in the meeting file labeled April 19, 2021.

Commissioner Cummings moved to approve the lease as presented. Chair Kirby asked for
all in favor the motion passed unanimously (7-0).

HVAC Northern Chowan Community Center Bids

Mr. Howard presented the Board with two current bids received and one previous (now declined
to bid on current project) for replacement of a HVAC unit at the Northern Chowan Community
Center. He noted that staff recommends approving the low bid from Comfort Master.

Commissioner McLaughlin noted a large range in the bids. He asked if staff was comfortable
with the contractor.

County Maintenance Director Don Hoggard stated yes, they installed another unit at the site
previously.

Commissioner McLaughlin moved to approve the low bid from Comfort master. Chair Kirby
asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0).

NCACC Annual Conference

Ms. Stallings asked the Board to authorize the her to begin early registration for the North
Carolina Association of County Commissioners (NCACC) Annual Conference to be held in
August 12-14, 2021 in New Hanover County at the Wilmington Convention Center. She noted




that two Commissioners have indicated interest in attending the conference. The charges for this
conference will not be billed until the 2021-22 budget but early rates can only be locked in the
month of May 2021. Information on the conference is in the meeting file labeled April 19, 2021.

Commissioner McLaughlin and Commissioner Lawrence indicated their interest in attending as
well.

Commissioner Cummings moved to authorize the Clerk to register four Commissioners to attend
the annual conference. Chair Kirby asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0).

Appointment — Regional Advisory Board

Ms. Stallings stated that the Board has received a request for appointment to the Regional
Council with the Albemarle Commission. All applications have been forwarded to the
Albemarle Commission for their review to ensure the applicants meet statutory requirements and
have no conflicts of interest. This vacancy has been advertised for over two years. The Area
Agency on Aging recommends appointment of Sandra Taylor.

Commissioner Kehayes moved to appoint Sandra Taylor to the Regional Advisory Council.
Chair Kirby asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0).

Maintenance Department Annual Report
Maintenance Director Don Hoggard provided the annual report from the Maintenance
Department.

Budget Amendments
Mr. Howard presented the following budget amendments:

BA2021-054
Account Number Account Description Revenue Expense
(Inc+/Dec-) (Inc+/Dec-)

Maintenance

11-4240-121-00 Salaries - Regular (8,000.00)

11-4240-126-00 Salaries - Part time 8,000.00

11-4240-351-00 Maintenance & Repairs - Buildings 2,500.00
Northern Rec Buildi.

11-4247-352-00 Maintenance & Repairs - EqQuipment (2,500.00)

Balanced - -

Justification:

To amend the 2021 budget for Maintenance to include additional part-
time salaries and LED lamps for the parking lot lights at the Wharf
Landing pier. Monies are being transferred between line items and no

additional funding is being requested.



BA2021-055

Account Number Account Description Revenue Expense
(Inc+/Dec-) (Inc+/Dec-)
Social Services
12-5310-121-00 Salaries - Regular (25,000.00)
12-5310-199-00 Professional Services - Attorney Fees 25,000.00
Balanced - -

Justification:

To amend the 2021 budget for Social Services to include additional
attorney fees. Monies are being transferred between line items and
no additional funding is being requested.

Chair Kirby asked what was the total budget for DSS Attorney fees noting this includes an
increase of $25,000. He stated this is a significant increase.

Commissioner Kehayes stated that DSS has had several cases this year and has needed legal
services.

Commissioner Cummings moved to approve the budget amendments as presented. Chair Kirby
asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0).

Resolution in opposition to HB 401/ SB 349, Increasing Housing Opportunities

Chair Kirby stated that he drafted the proposed resolution for the Board to consider. He stated
that the Albemarle Commission Board considered a similar resolution. He stated that the
Albemarle Commission Board feels the proposed legislation impairs a County’s ability to
manage zoning locally. He stated that he invited the Planner, Brandon Shoaf to comment on the
bill.

Mr. Howard noted that he called the Association of County Commissioners and stated they are
monitoring the bill and are unsure of where it will go.

Mr. Shoaf stated that he felt the resolution should include a statement of opposition at the
beginning. He sated that the proposed legislation will allow for developments such as duplexes
and triplexes in any zoning district. HE stated that currently the County’s zoning ordinance
allows for this type of development in the R-5 and R-15 zoning districts. He stated that the
County is able to maintain some control regarding developments with density requirements in
the ordinance. He noted that previous developments that required sewer the County requires the
Homeowners Association to maintain the sewer. He stated that if the HOA does not maintain the
sewer it becomes responsibility of the County. He stated this also could impact the allowance
for accessory buildings but they have to meet minimum standards. He stated the Planning
Association is holding a conference call regarding the proposed legislation and he expects more
information.



Commissioner Kehayes asked if that Association has taken a position on the legislation.
Mr. Shoaf stated they are watching it but have not put out a statement.

Commissioner Kehayes asked Mr. Shoaf if he agreed with the proposed resolution.

Mr. Shoaf stated yes.

Commissioner Lawrence asked if a developer is allowed to build with no concern over sewer or
water capacities.

Mr. Shoaf stated it allows the freedom with regards to siting a project and that is currently
controlled in zoning.

Commissioner Lawrence asked if the County will lose control of the development.
Mr. Shoaf stated yes.

Commissioner Lawrence provided an example of a subdivision where it was built and the Town
did not have adequate sewer capacity. He stated the expansion of sewer was funded by the tax
payers and he did not feel that was fair.

Commissioner Kehayes moved to approve the resolution as presented. Chair Kirby asked for all
in favor, the motion passed (6-1 Lawrence).

A Resolution of the Board of Commissioners of Chowan County, North Carolina

in Opposition to HB401/SB349, Increasing Housing Opportunities

WHEREAS, the Increasing Housing Opportunities, Senate Bill 349, was filed on March 24, 2021
and an identical bill, House Bill 401, was filed on March 24, 2021. These pieces of legislation are
collectively referred to as the Bill; and

WHEREAS, the stated purpose of the Bill is to provide reforms to local government zoning
authority to increase housing opportunities and to make various changes and clarifications to the zoning
statutes; and

WHEREAS, Part 1 and Part 2 of the Bill propose significant changes to Chapter 160D (local
planning and development regulation) of the General Statutes that significantly reduce the autonomy of
local governments in establishing and enforcing local zoning and land use regulation; the state-wide
regulations proposed in the Bill would obstruct a local government’s ability to thoughtfully plan for growth
and evaluate development proposed in a community; and

WHEREAS, Sections 1.1-1.4 of the Bill eliminates single-family zoning by allowing for middle
housing types (defined as residential duplexes, triplexes, quadplexes, and townhouses) in areas zoned
for residential use and mandating the allowance of accessory dwelling units in all residential zones; while



such mandates would increase housing supply statewide there is no guarantee of housing quality,
affordability or neighborhood compatibility; and

WHEREAS, Sections 2.1, 2.4, 2.6 of the Bill significantly alters the development review and
development appeals process to the disadvantage of a local authority; specific examples include:
precluding using traffic as a basis for denying a development permit; barring local governments from
conditioning the acceptance or processing of a permit application unless specifically statutorily
authorized,; and authorizing a court to award reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs to a party successfully
challenging the actions of a local government; and

WHEREAS, Section 1.5 of the Bill directs local governments to adopt land use ordinances and
regulations or amend their comprehensive plans to implement the provisions of Part 1 of the Bill by
October 1, 2021; local governments are investing significant time and resources to comply with new
Chapter 160D requirements recently enacted by the General Assembly (S.L. 2020-25). The proposed Bill
would significantly alter those ongoing planning processes, waste governments resources, and erode
public trust; and

WHEREAS, if the intent of the Bill is to increase the statewide housing supply, then there should
be a rigorous analysis of the local fiscal, environmental, health and service impacts, both positive and
negative, and reasonable solutions, including funding, included in the Bill to mitigate impacts; and

WHEREAS, Albemarle Commission, is one of sixteen regional Councils of Government
established by the State of North Carolina at the direction of the General Assembly. Albemarle
Commission is a public organization that serves local governments across a ten-county region,
coordinates regional planning, and delivers services; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Delegates of Albemarle Commission unanimously adopted a Resolution
in opposition to the Bill at its April 2021 Board Meeting;

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Commissioners of Chowan County, NC
opposes HB401/SB349, The Increasing Housing Opportunities Bill as proposed. The NC General
Assembly is encouraged to directly engage with regional councils, counties, and local governments to
consider strategies that increase housing supply and affordability without compromising the authority of
North Carolina’s local governments.

ADOPTED this 19" day of April 2021.

External Board/Committee Report
Chair Kirby stated that the Board members are asked to report on the activities of the external
boards to which they have been appointed.

Commissioner McLaughlin reported on the CIP Committee.

Commissioner Evans reported on the TDA Board.



Chair Kirby reported on the Albemarle Commission Board.

Manager’s Report
County Manager Kevin Howard updated the Board on the following:

- He plans to present the FY 2021-22 budget at the next meeting, staff will work to
schedule some budget work session dates.

Timely and Important Matters

Ms. Stallings provided the Board with an update on current bids of the surplus properties noting
that five of the properties are going into a round 4 bid.

Adjourn
Being no further business Commissioner McLaughlin moved to adjourn the meeting. Chair

Kirby asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0).

Bob Kirby, Chairman Susanne Stallings, Clerk



